
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAl. PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION .. 


ATLANTA FEDERAL CEI'HER 

61 FORSYTH SlREET 


AT!.ANTA, GEORGIA 30003-8960 


UNIIED PARCEL SERvJCE 

Ms. Gcorgeu B. Dickinson 
Corporate Counsel 
YKK Corporalicn of America 
1850 Parkway Place, Suit 300 
Marietta. Georgia 30067 

Re: Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Matter of YKK Snap Fastener America. Inc. iYKK) 
Docket No. CAA-04-2011-1500ib) 

Dear Ms. Dickinson: 

Enclosed please find a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) 
in the above-referenced malter. The original CAFO has been filed with the Regional Hearing 
Clerk as dim.'1cd in Section 22.05(a) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice. as amended. Please 
refer to Section IV (Final Oruer), for the tenns and instmctions regarding YKK's final payment 
on the penalty due. Any questions regarding the processing of YKK's penalty may he directed 
to Ms. Lori Weidner, Financial Management Office, at {513} 487~2125. 

If you have any other questions, please contact Chetan T. Gala of the South Air 
Enforcement Section at (404) 562~9746 or Michiko Kono, Associate ~egional Counsel, at (404) 
562-9558. 

Sincerely. 

- "',~ ~---
" / /

Beverly A. Spagg 
Chief 
Air and EPCRA Enforcement Br.mch 

Enclosure 
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UNITED STATRS E"IVIROSMENTAL PROTECl'lON AGENCY 

REGION 4 


IN THEMATIER Of: 

YKK Snap Fasteners America Inc. ) 


302 Factory Avenue , .
) 	 Docket Number: CAA.04-2011-1so/)(h) 
Lawrenceburg. Kentucky 40342 	 ) 

) 
) 

Respondent 	 ) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. Nature of the Action/Jurisdictional Statements 

1. 	 This is a civil penalty proceeding purs.uant to Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act (eAA), 
42 U.S.c. § 74lJ(d). and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the 
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Tcnnination or 
Smpension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 C.P.R. Pan 22. Complainant 
is the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxies Management Division. Region 4, United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is YKK Snap Fasteners 
America Tne. (hereinafter, "Rellpondent"), 

2. 	 Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 
40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described 
herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument or the adjudication of any issue in thi:. malter. 
and in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b). this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAPO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

3. 	 The authority to take action under Section IB(d) of CAA. 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d). is ves(ed 
in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
under the CAA to the Regional Administrators oy EPA Delegation 7 ~("'A, The Regional 
Administrator. Region 4, has rcdclcgated this authority to the Director, Air. Pesticides. 
and Toxics Management Division, hy EPA Region 4 DeJegatJon 7~6~A, Pursuant to that 
delegation, the Director of the Air, Pesticides and T oxics Management Division has the 
authority to commence an enforcement action as the Complainam in this matter. 

4, 	 Respondent i.;;; a corporation doing business in the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

5, 	 Respondent is a "person" as defined in CAA § 302(e).42 U.S.c. § 7602(e). 

6. 	 The requirementl5 of 40 C.FR Part 63. Subpart MMMM. promulgated under Section 
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112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(d), ""tablish national emission standard, for 
hazardOl.L<;; air poUutants (HAPs) for surface coating of miM.:cllaneous metal pans and 
products. 

7. 	 PtlJ~uant to Section S(}2(a) of tbe CM, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), it shall be unlawful for any 
person to violate any requirement of a pennit i5<')ued under Litle V. 

g, 	 EPA's final approval of the Commonwealth of Kentucky's operating permit program 
includlng the title Y pennit program, was erfective on November 30, 2001. 66 Fed. Reg. 
54953 {Octoher 31, 2001). The interim approval of the program was effective 
December 14, 1995, 60 Fed., Reg, 57186-57188 (November 14, 1995). 

9, 	 Section 112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.c, § 7412(d), .uthon7." EPA to promulgate emission 
standards fot' categoric-I! of SQurces of HAPs. Hstc<l in Section 112(b)(1) of the eM. 
Those regulations have been promulgated al40 C.F.R. Part 63. and regulate specific 
categories of stationary S01.Irt:eS that emit (or have the potential to emit) one or mUIC 

HAPs. The HAPl:> regulations contain general provisions in Subpart A and special 
provisions for specific categories iu the subparts to Part 63, 

10, 	 On January 2, 2004. EPA promulgated the final rule for the source category. SurfaCt~ 
Coating of Miscellaneou, Metal Parts and Products, or "Subpart MMMM" (69 Fed, Reg. 
129), Subpart MMMM was later amended on April 26,2004 (69 Fed, Reg, 22601), 

11. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.P.R. § 63,3883. the compliance date for existing tiQurces subject to 
Subpart MMMM was January 2, 2007. 

12. 	 Pursuanl wSection I 13(d) of the CM, 42 U,S,C, § 7413(d), and 40 c'F,R, Parl 19, EPA 
may assess a penalty of not more than $32,500 for each day of violation of the CAA that 
occurred bctween March 15.2004. and January 12.2009, For each such viotation 
occurring after January 12.2009, a penalty of up to $37.500 may be assessed. 

13. 	 Com,istenl "ith Section 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U,S.c, § 74!3(d), the requi,ite jOint 
determjnation was made by EPA.and the United States Department of Justice. 

II. Factual Al1eg;\tiQD! 

14. 	 Respondent operates a facility that manufactures and applies surfai.~e coarings to snaps 
and fastent,,7s at 302 Factory Avenue. Lawrenceburg. Kentucky 40342, Respondent's 
facility is. a major source under title V of the CAA. and uses 250 gallons or more per year 
of coatings lhat contain HAPs to ('oat metal parts or products. 

15. 	 Re.iponden.t operates under a title V uperating permit. pennit number V-06~025, issued on 
November 20, 2006, by the Kentucky Department of Environmental Protection. Division 
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for Air Quality (KDAQ), pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part70 and 401 Kentucky Adtuini>tranve 
Regulation (KARl 52:020. 

16. 	 On February 24. 2009. EPA and KDAQ, conducted an on-site inspection of Respondent's 
facility. 

17. 	 On March 19, 2009, EPA issued an information request letter to the Respondent, pursuant 
to Section 114(0) of the CM. 42 U.S.c. § 7414(3). 

18. 	 The Respondent responded to the information request in May. June, and August 2009. 

19. 	 EPA allege, that Respondent violated 40 COP'&' § 63.3910(b) when it did not submit the 
initial notil1cation for Hll existing affected source by January 2, 2005. 

20. 	 EPA aliege, that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 63.3950 and Section D, Paragraph 4, 
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE EMISSION RATE WITHOUT ADD·ON 
CONTROL OPTION, § 63.3950 Initial Compliance Demonstration Deadline of its title V 
permit, when it did not conduct an initial compliance demonstration during the initial 
compliance period, which began on January 2. 2007, and ended. on January 31. 2008. 

21. 	 EPA alleges that Respondent v;ol.ted40 C.F.R. § 63.3951 and Section D. Paragraph 4, 
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE EMISSION RATE WITHOUT ADD·ON 
CONTROL OPTION, § 63.3951 Demonstration of Initial Compliance with Emission 
Limitations of its title V permit. when it did not meet the requirements demonstrating 
compliance with the emissiun limit during the initiai compliance period. 

22. 	 EPA alleges that Respondcnl violated 40 C.F.R. § 63.3910(c) and Section D, Paragraph 
4. NOTIfiCATIONS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS. § 63.91U(c) Notijlcalion of 
(Y)mpliance sratus of its- title V pennie, when it did not submit the notification of 
compliance status within 30 calendar days tbUowing the end of the initial compliance 
period, which occurred on January 31, 2008. 

23. 	 EPA allege. thaI Respondent violated 40 C.ER. § 63.3952 and Section D. Paragraph 4 
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE EMISSION RATE WITHOUT ADD-ON 
CONTROL OPTION. § 63.3952 Demom{ration of compliance with the emi,<:'sioll 
limitatioru. of its tide V permit, when Res:pondent had not determined continuous 
compliance with the emissionlimtt in 40 C.F.R. § 63.3890(b)(1). foUowing the initial 
compliance period. 

24. 	 EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.ER. §§ 63.3930, 63.3931. and 63.IO(b)(IJ 
and Section D. Parngraph 4. § 63.3930 of its titie V pennit, when Re'pondent did not 
ha.ve avatiable for review records that were required to be maintained pursuant to 40 
C.F.R §§ 63.3930 and 63.IO(b)(I). 
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25. 	 EPA illleges that Respondent violated 40 CFR § 63.3890(b)(!) and Secrion D. Paragraph 
4 of it, title V permit, when it did not meet the applicable organic HAP emission limit of 
0.31 kilograms (kg) per liter (I) or 2.6 pounds (lbs) per gallon (gal) coating solids used. 
from the initial compliance periud through Decemher 2009. 

26. 	 EPA alleges that Rcspondenl violated 40 C.F.R. § 63.3920(a) and Section D, Paragraph 
4, § 63.3920, (a) SemimlJ11.i1'J1 compliance reports, when it did not submit semiannual 
reports covering the reporting periods Pebruary - June 2008. and July ~ December 2008, 
by July 31, 2008, and January ~ll. 2009, respeclively. 

27. 	 EPA alleges that Respondent violated Section F. paragraph 6, of its title V operating 
permit when it did not submit compJete and accurate title V semiannual monitoring 
reports for the two semjanrmul periods of the 2008 calendar year. 

28. 	 EPA alleges that Respondent violated Section F. paragraph 9, of its title V operating 
permit when it did not submit a complete and accurate title V annual compliance 
certification for calendar year 2008, when the certification did not contaiJl informatiQn 
pertaining to [he compJiancc status with the requirements of 40 C.ER Part 63, SUhpart 
MMMM. 

III. Consent Agreement 

29. 	 For the purposes of this CAPO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set out in 
Paragraphs 1 through 13 above. but Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual 
allegations set forth ill paragraphs 14 through 28 above, 

30. 	 As provided in 40 C.ER. § 22,18(b)(2), Respondent waives any right to contest the 
allegations listed above and its right to appeallhe proposed final order accompanying this 
consent agreement. 

31. 	 Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as set forth 
in this CAFO. 

32. 	 Respondent certifies that. to the best of its knowledge, information and beUef, as of the 
date of its cxe\.'Ution of this CAPO. it is in full compliance with all the relevant 
requirements of the CAA, .and the implementing regulatlons, 

33, 	 Compliance with this eMO shall re.solve the al1eged violations contained herein. and 
EPA hereby releases Re.spondent from liability for the violarions alleged herein regarding 
title V all<140 C.P.R. Part 63, Subpart MMMM. This CAFO shall not otherwise alTeet 
any liability of Respondent. if any, to the United States, Other than as cxpresl:'ed herein, 
EPA docs not waive any right to bring an enforcement aetion agaimt Respondent for 
violation of any federal or state statute. regulation or permit, to initiate an action for 
imminent and substantial ertdangenncnt, or to pursue L't1mmaJ enforcement for allegations 
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of violations not contained in this CAFO, Respondent reserves its right'" and defcn::.es 
regarding liability in any proceedings other than a proceeding by Complainant to enforce 
this CAFO. 

34, 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by !.heir execution of this CAFO. 
The partie~ agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public Intcre!.t and that this 
CAPO i~ consistent with the applicable requirements of the CAA 

IV. Final Ords:r 

35. 	 Respondent ,hall pay a civil penalty of TWO HUNDRED FORTY FIVE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($ 245,000.(0) which shall be paid within thirty (30) days from the 
effective date of the CAFO. 

36, 	 Respondent shall pay the penalty by fOr\Varding Ii cashier's or certified check, payable to: 
"Treasurer. United States of America,"lO the foUowing address: 

U,S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 

81. Louis, MO 63197-9000 

Th(! cbttk shall reference on it'!; face the name of the Respondent and the 1locket 
Number of the CAFO. 

Alternatlvely, Respondent shall pay the penally by wire transfer. The:: wire tran~fer shall 
he directed to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, as dcltCribed below. 

Federa1 Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA =021030004 
Account: 68010727 
SWIFf address: FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty SIreet 
New York, New York 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 

EllvirorunentaJ Protection Agency" 
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37, 	 At the time of payment, Respondent s,hall send a separate copy of rhe check, and a 
Wlitten statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAPO, to the 
following persons at the following addresses, or send a written statement !.hat payment 
was made by wire transfer. in accordance with this CAt1), to the following persons at 
the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk Ms, Saundi Wilson tOEA) 
U.s< EPA < Region 4 u.s< EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S<W< 61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 Atlanta, Georgi. 30303 

Mr. Chelan T, Gala 

Air. Pesticides and Toxies ~Management Divi5ion 

Air and EPCRA Enforcement Branch 

U,s< EPA - Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303 


38. 	 Por the pUrpQses of state and federal iru;:ome taxation, RC5p<Jndent shall not be entitled, 
and agrees not to attempt, to claim an expense or a deduction or a credit for the civil 
penalty payment made pursuant to paragraph 35. 

39, 	 Purfmant to 31 U.s,C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to a[\:sess intcreM and penalties on debts 
owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent claim. lute-rest will therefore begin to accrue on the dvil penalty from the date 
of entry of this CAFO. if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be 
assessed at the rate established by the S~crelary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 
3717, A charge will he assessed to rover the costs of debt collection, including 
processing llnd handling (.'Qsts and attorney fees. In addition. a penalty charge may be 
Msessed on any ponion of the debt lhat rernaii1.~ delinquent more than ninety (90) days 
after payment is due. 

40. 	 Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own eosts and attoUle), fees in this matter. 

41. 	 This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

42. 	 The foHowing person is authorized to ret.'eive service fur EPA in this. proceeding: 

Mr< Chelan T. Gala 
Air, Pesticides and ToxiC!) Management Division 
Air and EPCRA Enforcement Brdllch 
U<S< EPA - Region 4 
61 Fon;yth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-9746 
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43. 	 Each undersigned representative of the porties to this CAFO certifies that he or she i~ fully 
authorized by the party represented to cnler into this CAfO lllld legally bind that party to 
it, 

V. [!Jfective Oat,;;; 

44. 	 The effective date of this CAFO shall he the date on which the eAFO is filed with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

YKK Snap Fasteners America Inc 

By: ~.~__ (Signature) Datc:.JJjLr:;/]L.>IO 
Name: Michael J. ~!_",un'"t,-_____.._ (Typed or Printed) 

Title: President _______ (Typed or Printed) 

';l'S' Em,-jronmental Protection Agency 

'\ \ 


~i \ 'Il\' 0 9 !lila
Date:_.. _____By. \w J' 

Beverly H. mister. Director 
Air, Pesticides and Taxies: 

Management Division 
Region 4 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this 
2010, 

~!3' Jr./t.<J,
Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial On-ker 
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CERTIFlCA TE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the date set out below I flied the original and one copy of the 
foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served • true and correct copy of the 
foregoing COlllIent Agreement and Final Order, in the Matter of: YKK Snap Fasteners 
America lnc., Docket No. CAA-1)4..2010-1554(bJ, on the parties listed below in the 
manner indicated: 

Georgett Dickinson, Esq. (V ia C.ertified Mail, 
YKK Corporation of America Return Receipt Requested) 
1850 Parl<way Place, Suite 300 
Marietta, Georgia 30067 

Micbiko Kono (Via EPA', internal rua11) 
U.S. EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta. GA 30303 


Chelan T. Gala (Via EPA's interua1 mail) 
Air, Pesticides and TOX1cs Management Division 
Air and EPCRA Enforcement Branch 
U.S. EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303 


Date: 1d--IY-/6 '~ll~ 
Patricia A. Bulkx:k, ~ 
United States Environmental Protection 
Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404)562-9511 
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